
____________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 
 
 

    
  
 
 
                      

                                                                               
  AGENDA 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
Regular Board Meeting 

Tuesday, October 9, 2012 
Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 

 
              9:00 AM Call to Order 
   Approval of Minutes    

 October 2, 2012 
    
   Review Agenda 
 

Consent Agenda  
 
   Central Services 

a. Purchase Authorization from Jo Bee Company for FTR Software & Audio Mixer  
b. Contract Termination Letter with Imagenet, LLC 
Juvenile  
c. Contract w/The Boys & Girls Club of Benton & Franklin Counties for Fast Forward Program 
d. Contract w/Pasco School District for Case Management and School Engagement Programing   
Office of Public Defense 
e. Terminating Service Agreement w/E Hogue 
f. Terminating Public Defense Contract w/R Thompson 
g. Terminating Public Defense Contract w/M Mooney 
h. Terminating Public Defense Contract w/K Holt 
Personnel 
i. Contract w/SWN Communications, Inc (Send Word Now) for Communication Capabilities  
Public Works 
j. Covenant Agreement to Utilize Road Right of Way in Lampson Homesites  
k. Approval of 2013-2018 Six-Year Road Program 
l. Lease Agreement w/Horrigan Farms, Inc to Crush & Stockpile Road Surfacing Materials 
Superior Court 
m. Proclamation for National Adoption Day 
n. Proclamation for Youth and Justice Day 
 
Scheduled Business: 
 
Red Mountain Transportation Project Update – Chuck Dawsey 
 

  Unscheduled Visitors 
   Board Assignment Update   

Leo Bowman 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mf
Text Box
To view items in detail, please click on highlighted area

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight

mf
Highlight



 - 1 - 

MINUTES 
 

BOARD OF BENTON COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 

Regular Board Meeting 
Tuesday, October 2, 2012, 9:00 a.m. 
Commissioners’ Conference Room  

Benton County Courthouse, Prosser, WA 
 
 
Present: Chairman James Beaver 
  Commissioner Shon Small 
  County Administrator David Sparks   
  Clerk of the Board Cami McKenzie 
 
Absent: Commissioner Leo Bowman (excused) 
 
Benton County Employees Present During All or a Portion of the Meeting: Deputy 
Administrator Loretta Smith Kelty; Adam Fyall, Sustainable Development Manager; Finance 
Manager Keith Mercer; Personnel Manager Melina Wenner; Human Services Manager Ed 
Thornbrugh; Public Works Manager Steve Becken; Planning Manager Mike Shuttleworth; DPA 
Ryan Brown; Central Services Manager Randy Reid; District Court Administrator Jacki 
Lahtinen; Larry Moser, Bryan Thorp, and Norm Childress, Public Works; Rosie Sparks, 
Auditor’s Office; Susan Walker, Planning.   
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
The Minutes of September 25, 2012 were approved. 
The Minutes of September 26, 2012 were approved. 
 
Consent Agenda 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the consent agenda items “a” through “l”.  
Commissioner Beaver seconded and upon vote, the Board approved the following: 
 
Commissioners    

a. Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 107 
Fairgrounds 

b. Contract w/Sierra Electric, Inc. for Electrical Pedestal Replacement     
Human Services 

c. Agreement w/Service Alternatives, Inc. for Developmental Disabilities Services    
d. Agreement w/Peopleworks Tri-Cities, LLC for Developmental Disabilities Services  
e. Amended Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee 
f. Agreement w/EnTrust Community Services for Developmental Disability Services 

Juvenile  
g. Contract w/M Trombley for Legal Representation Services    



 - 2 - 

h. Truancy Contract w/Kiona-Benton School District 
i. Contract w/J Blanco for Functional Family Therapy Training 

Office of Public Defense 
j. Payment Authorization to P Younesi for Preliminary Court Appearances    

Personnel 
k. Contract w/C Poulsen for Training Services      

Sheriff 
l. Contract w/Watson Furniture Group, Inc. for Master Control Work Stations 

 
Public Hearing – Budget Adjustment – 2011-2012 Current Expense 
 
Keith Mercer presented the budget adjustment to the 2011-2012 Current Expense budget to 
allow the cash carry forward in excess of 13% be transferred to the following funds: 
 
Park Development - $100,000 
Fairgrounds O & M - $373,274 
Capital Projects - $6,322,237 
Sustainable Development - $204,489 
 
As there was no one present to testify, the public hearing was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the budget adjustment to the 2011-2012 
Current Expense Fund, Dept. 115 in the amount of $7,000,000 as presented.  Chairman Beaver 
seconded and upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   
 
Public Hearing – Six-Year Road Program 
 
Steve Becken reviewed the total anticipated revenue and expenses for the Six Year Road 
Program and stated there was more need for work than money available and the expenses 
exceeded the revenue by $25,759,421. Mr. Becken then reviewed the road program including 
potential new roads, the rural arterial program, paved road upgrades, enhancement and safety 
projects, along with the annual program and miscellaneous projects.  
 
As there was no one present to testify, public testimony was closed. 
 
MOTION:  Commissioner Small moved to approve the Six Year Road Program as presented.  
Chairman Beaver seconded and upon vote, the motion carried unanimously.   
 
One-Year Road Program 
 
Steve Becken and Larry Moser presented the 2013 Benton County Road Program including the 
estimated revenues and expenses for a balanced budget in the amount of $17,420,122.  
Additionally, they discussed the proposed Public Works Road Fund Purchases in the amount of 
$34,200 and ER&R Purchases in the $3,920,700.   
 



 - 3 - 

Chairman Beaver asked for a summary on the Roza Traffic Safety Study that was done and Mr. 
Becken said he would present that to the Board during a regular board meeting.   
 
Chairman Beaver said it was his understanding some of the proposed numbers were only 
placeholders because the projects had to be identified in case money become available and Mr. 
Becken confirmed that was true.   
 
Tri-City Regional Chamber of Commerce Coalition 
 
Chairman Beaver said that Benton County received a request to support a resolution endorsing 
Tri-City Regional Chamber of Commerce’s efforts to amend Washington’s Energy 
Independence Act with respect to green power and protect qualifying utilities from the purchase 
of eligible renewable energy resources or renewable energy credits not needed.  He asked the 
Board to review the issue and let him know if it was interested in supporting this coalition.  
 
Commissioner Small said he was in favor of finding the best price for the constituents and would 
review the matter.   
 
Commissioner Assignment Update 
 
Commissioner Small said that BCES approved its proposed budget in the amount of $4,964,692 
(our costs went up a total of $148,851); $164,000 came from upgrade for the 800 mhz.  He said 
they did a good job making cuts and reducing the amount of full-time employees to balance the 
budget.   
 
Chairman Beaver reported on his attendance at the Tri-City Chamber meeting, Tri-City Visitor 
and Convention Bureau meeting, TRIDEC meeting, and three candidate forums.   
 
Budget Workshops – October 10 and 11 
 
Chairman Beaver stated that his position had not changed and he was still interested in seeing a 
footprint reduction.  He talked about the computer upgrades there were being implemented and 
the importance of that in creating speed and size reduction.   
 
Commissioner Small said he agreed with that philosophy.  
 
Vouchers 
 
Check Date: 9/28/2012 
Warrant #: 66436-66855 
Taxes #: 010109121 
Total all funds: $623,016.51 
 
Total amounts approved by fund can be reviewed in the Benton County Auditor’s Office. 
 



 - 4 - 

Resolutions 
 
2012-568: Line Item Transfer, Fund No. 0000-101, Dept. 107 
2012-569: Contract w/Sierra Electric, Inc. for Electrical Pedestal Replacement     
2012-570: Agreement w/Service Alternatives, Inc. for Developmental Disabilities Services    
2012-571: Agreement w/Peopleworks Tri-Cities, LLC for Developmental Disabilities 

Services  
2012-572: Amended Agreement w/Benton Franklin Community Action Committee 
2012-573: Agreement w/EnTrust Community Services for Developmental Disability 

Services 
2012-574: Contract w/M Trombley for Legal Representation Services    
2012-575: Truancy Contract w/Kiona-Benton School District 
2012-576: Contract w/J Blanco for Functional Family Therapy Training 
2012-577: Payment Authorization to P Younesi for Preliminary Court Appearances    
2012-578: Contract w/C Poulsen for Training Services      
2012-579: Contract w/Watson Furniture Group, Inc. for Master Control Work Stations 
2012-580: Budget Adjustment to the 2011-2012 Current Expense Budget in the Amount of 

$7,000,000 – Cash Carry Forward 
 

 
There being no further business before the Board, the meeting adjourned at approximately 9:24 
a.m.  
 
 
_______________________________   ______________________________ 
Clerk of the Board      Chairman 
 



mf
Text Box
a. Purchase Authorization from Jo Bee Co for FTR Software & Audio Mixer





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:     10/09/2012   
Subject:     Contract Termination 
Prepared by:       L. Small  
Reviewed by: R. Lukson     

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 
Execute Contract _____ 
Pass Resolution  _____  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
Central Services  

Consent Agenda           __X__  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
Benton County Central Services advertised a Request for Proposal for Digitizing Archival 
Records, and as per Resolution 09-805 dated December 14, 2009 the Board of 
Commissioners awarded said services to Imagenet, LLC, Kent, WA with a termination date of 
January 1, 2014.  
 
Attached is a letter to Imagenet, LLC for Chairman’s signature indicating the County’s 
decision to exercise the option to terminate the contract as outlined in said agreement per 
Section 9.a, Termination.  
 
Benton County believes it is in the best interest to terminate said contract due to the fact that 
additional funds have not been allocated for digitizing archival records and services have not 
been performed under said contract for over a year.  

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
Authorize the Chairman of the Board to sign the attached termination letter for the service 
contract between Benton County and Imagenet, LLC.    
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
None  
 
 
MOTION 
 
Move to authorize the Chairman of the Benton County Commissioners to sign the attached letter 
to terminate the service contract between Benton County and Imagenet, LLC for Digitizing 
Archival Records; with said contract terminating on October 19, 2012.  

mf
Text Box
b. Contract Termination Letter w/ Imagenet, LLC



 
P.O. Box 190, Prosser, WA  99350-0190; Phone (509) 786-5600 or (509) 736-3080, Fax (509) 786-5625 

commissioners@co.benton.wa.us 

     
  

                                          
CERTIFIED MAIL 

October 9, 2012    
 
 
Mr. Bob Fleury 
Imagenet, LLC 
6411 S 216th Street 
Kent, WA 98032 
 
RE: Termination of Service Agreement between Benton County and Imagenet, LLC – 
Resolution 09-805 
 
Dear Mr. Bob Fleury:  
 
The purpose of this letter is to advise you that Benton County is exercising its right to terminate 
the above cited service agreement per Section 9.a., Termination.  
 
Section 9.a. states: The COUNTY may terminate this Contract in whole or in part whenever the 
COUNTY determines, in its sole discretion, that such termination is in the best interests of the 
COUNTY.  The COUNTY may terminate this Contract upon giving ten (10) days written notice 
by certified mail to the CONTRACTOR.  
 
Please be advised that said contract will terminate on October 19, 2012.  
 
Thank you for your attention to this matter.  
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Jim Beaver, Chairman 
Benton County Board of Commissioners  
 
cc: Commissioners  
David Sparks, County Administrator  
Loretta Smith Kelty, Deputy County Administrator  
Josie Delvin, Benton County Clerk 
Randy Reid, Central Services Manger 
Melina Wenner, Personnel/Risk Manager  
Ryan Lukson, Civil Deputy Prosecuting Attorney 

Board of County Commissioners 
BENTON COUNTY 

Leo Bowman 
District 1 

Shon Small 
District 2 

James Beaver 
District 3 

David Sparks 
County Administrator 

 
Loretta Smith Kelty 

Deputy County Administrator 

mailto:commissioners@co.benton.wa.us


mf
Text Box
c. Contract w/The Boys & Girls Club of Benton & Franklin Counties for Fast Forward Program









mf
Text Box
d. Contract w/Pasco School District for Case Management & School Engagement Programing









mf
Text Box
e. Terminating Service Agreement w/E Hogue





mf
Text Box
f. Terminating Public Defense Contract w/R Thompson





mf
Text Box
g. Terminating Public Defense Contract w/M Mooney





mf
Text Box
h. Terminating Public Defense Contract w/K Holt





 
AGENDA ITEM 

Meeting Date:     10/8/2012     
Subject:  Send Word 

Now Contract 
Prepared by:        B.Perry 
Reviewed by:  M.Wenner          

       

 
TYPE OF ACTION NEEDED 

Execute Contract ___x__ 
Pass Resolution  _____  
Pass Ordinance  _____  
Pass Motion  _____  
Other   _____ 

 
 
Consent Agenda            __x___  
Public Hearing            _____  
1st Discussion            _____ 
2nd Discussion            _____ 
Other             _____  

   
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
To enhance and improve emergency communications among county employees, the Personnel Resources 
Department would like to enter into a service agreement with SWN Communications, Inc. (Send Word Now) 
that will provide for administrator training and emergency communication services. Along with instant 
notification to employees regarding emergency situations, Benton County will be able to utilize an inbound 
voice messaging board for employees to check, and applications for selected mobile users to initiate 
messages from a smart phone device.  The service agreement will be for three years starting on October 10, 
2012 and ending October 9, 2015. 
 
SUMMARY 
 
Send Word Now will provide a subscriber based emergency notification system to be used for Benton 
County employees. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Recommend approval of contract. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT 
 
$32,050.00 for three years not including WSST. Funding will come from Insurance Management  Fund 
(0504-101), no supplement will be needed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mf
Text Box
i. Contract w/SWN Communications, Inc (Send Word Now) for Communication Capabilities



cc:  Auditor, R. Ozuna, Personnel 

RESOLUTION 
 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF BENTON COUNTY, WASHINGTON: 
 
IN THE MATTER OF ENTERING INTO A SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH  
SWN COMMUNICATIONS  INC. (SEND WORD NOW), A DELAWARE 
CORPORATION WITH ITS PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS AT 224 W. 30 TH 
STREET, SUITE 500, NEW YORK, NY 10001 TO PROVIDE EMERGENCY 
COMMUNICATION CAPABILITIES TO BENTON COUNTY 
 
WHEREAS, instant communication during an emergency situation to large groups of 
employees is essential to managing an emergency; and 
 
WHEREAS, SWN Communications Inc. provides a subscriber based service for instant 
notification and response as well as message auditing, and an inbound voice messaging 
system, along with DIACAP accreditation for information assurance; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Risk Manager recommends entering into a service agreement with 
SWN Communications Inc. to provide a subscriber based emergency notification service 
to Benton County for emergency use or as a redundant means of mass communication;  
NOW THEREFORE  
 
BE IT RESOLVED , by the Board of Benton County Commissioners, Benton County, 
Washington, the Board concurs with the Risk Manager’s recommendation and hereby 
awards the service agreement to SWN Communications Inc. (Send Word Now) in an 
amount not to exceed $32,050 excluding WSST; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED  the attached service agreement commences on October 
10, 2012 and shall expire on October 9, 2015. 
 
Dated this……….day of…………, 20…….. 
 

_________________________________ 
Chairman of the Board 

 
_________________________________ 

Chairman Pro-Tem 
 

_________________________________ 
Member 

 
Attest:……………………………………….. 
 Clerk of the Board 





mf
Text Box
j. Covenant Agreement to Utilize Road Right of Way in Lampson Homesites











mf
Text Box
k. Approval of 2013-2018 Six-Year Road Program



mf
Text Box
l. Lease Agreement w/Horrigan Farms, Inc to Crush & Stockpile Road Surfacing Materials















mf
Text Box
n. Proclamation for Youth and Justice Day






	Agenda Minutes 100212
	Approval of Minutes
	Commissioner Assignment Update
	Vouchers


	CA - Central Services a
	CA - Central Services b
	Central Services 
	BACKGROUND INFORMATION

	CA - Juvenile c
	CA - Juvenile d
	CA - OPD e
	CA - OPD f
	CA - OPD g
	CA - OPD h
	CA - Personnel i
	CA - Public Works j
	CA - Public Works k
	CA - Public Works l
	CA - Superior Court m
	CA - Superior Court n



